
   

Finance Committee Meeting 
Monday, November 11, 2024 6:30 p.m. 
Norfolk Room - Education Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

A - 1 Opening  
 Call to Order  

 

(a) Roll Call 
 
(b) Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
(c) Welcome/Land Acknowledgement 

The Grand Erie District School Board recognizes Six Nations of the Grand River and 
Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation, as the longstanding peoples of this territory. We 
honour, recognize, and respect these communities as well as all First Nations, Métis and 
Inuit Peoples who reside within the Grand Erie District School Board. We are all stewards of 
these lands and waters where we now gather, learn and play, and commit to working 
together in the spirit of Reconciliation. 

B - 1 Approval of the Agenda 
 "THAT the Finance Committee agenda be approved." 
  

C - 1 Approval of the Minutes 
* "THAT the Minutes of the Finance Committee, dated September 9, 2024 be approved."  
  

D - 1 Business Arising from Minutes and/or Previous Meetings 
  

E - 1 New Business 
* (a) Facilities Renewal Plan 2024-25 (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
* (b) Rural and Northern Education Fund (RNEF) Spending Report (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
* (c) Year-End Report 2023-24 (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
  

F - 1 Other Business 
  

G - 1 Adjournment 
"THAT the Finance Committee meeting be adjourned." 

  
H - 1 Next Meeting Date: December 2, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 1 of 17



   

Finance Committee Meeting 
Monday, November 11, 2024 6:30 p.m. 
Norfolk Room - Education Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 

 

A - 1 Opening  
 Call to Order  

 

(a) Roll Call 
 
(b) Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
(c) Welcome/Land Acknowledgement 

The Grand Erie District School Board recognizes Six Nations of the Grand River and 
Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation, as the longstanding peoples of this territory. We 
honour, recognize, and respect these communities as well as all First Nations, Métis and 
Inuit Peoples who reside within the Grand Erie District School Board. We are all stewards of 
these lands and waters where we now gather, learn and play, and commit to working 
together in the spirit of Reconciliation. 

B - 1 Approval of the Agenda 
 "THAT the Finance Committee agenda be approved." 
  

C - 1 Approval of the Minutes 
* "THAT the Minutes of the Finance Committee, dated September 9, 2024 be approved."  
  

D - 1 Business Arising from Minutes and/or Previous Meetings 
  

E - 1 New Business 
* (a) Facilities Renewal Plan 2024-25 (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
* (b) Rural and Northern Education Fund (RNEF) Spending Report (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
* (c) Year-End Report 2023-24 (R. Wyszynski) (I) 
  

F - 1 Other Business 
  

G - 1 Adjournment 
"THAT the Finance Committee meeting be adjourned." 

  
H - 1 Next Meeting Date: December 2, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 2 of 17



  C-1 

Finance Committee Meeting 
Monday, September 9, 2024 6:30 p.m. 
Education Centre Boardroom  
 

MINUTES 
 
Present: Committee Chair: B. Doyle, Trustees: G. Anderson, J. Bradford, S. Gibson,  
 L. Passmore, E. Thomas, T. Waldschmidt 
 
Administration:  Director: J. Roberto, Superintendents: J. Tozer, R. Wyszynski, Recording 

Secretary: K. Ireland-Aitken, Executive Assistant: C. Dero 
 
Visiting Trustee: C.A. Sloat   
  
A - 1 Opening 
(a) Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order by Committee Chair B. Doyle at 6:30 p.m. and roll call 
was confirmed. 

 
(b) Declaration of Conflict of Interest – Nil 

 
(c) Welcome/Land Acknowledgment Statement 

Committee Chair B. Doyle read the Land Acknowledgement Statement. 
 

B - 1 Approval of the Agenda 
Moved by: G. Anderson 
Seconded by: S. Gibson 
THAT the Finance Committee agenda be approved. 
Carried 
 

C - 1 Approval of Minutes 
(a) June 10, 2024 

Moved by: J. Bradford 
Seconded by: T. Waldschmidt 
THAT the Minutes of the Finance Committee meeting dated June 10, 2024, be 
approved. 
Carried 
 

D - 1 Business Arising from Minutes/Previous Meetings – Nil 
 

E - 1 New Business 
(a) Capital Priorities Project Funding Submission 2024-25 

Presented as printed. 
In response to a question, the land acquisition of a school site in Paris is yet to be 
determined.  

 
(b) Special Approvals Report 
 Presented as printed. 
 The Board received two valid submissions that met the Tender requirements. Two 
 additional prequalified Bidders expressed their interest in the project, but they  were 
 unable to submit their proposals on time. 
 
F - 1 Other Business – Nil  
 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 3 of 17



  C-1 

Finance Committee Meeting 
Monday, September 9, 2024 6:30 p.m. 
Education Centre Boardroom  
 

MINUTES 
 
G - 1 Adjournment 

Moved by: T. Waldschmidt 
Seconded by:  L. Passmore 
THAT the Finance Committee meeting be adjourned. 
Carried 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:39 p.m. 

 
H - 1 Next Meeting Date: November 11, 2024 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 4 of 17



E-1-a 
 

Grand Erie District School Board 
 
   

 

TO:  JoAnna Roberto, Ph. D., Director of Education & Secretary of the Board 

FROM:  Rafal Wyszynski, Superintendent of Business & Treasurer 

RE:  Facility Renewal Plan 2024-25 

DATE:  November 11, 2024 
   
 
Background 
Facility Services maintains a building condition inventory that identifies building components 
that need repair or replacement. The Facility Services team reviews and prioritizes these needs 
as well as any priorities identified in the Multi-Year Strategic Plan. This report will summarize 
the capital components that will be addressed throughout the 2024-25 school year.  
 
Renewal Plans for 2024-25 
The following plan for capital related work has been developed by Facility Services to address 
high and urgent renewal needs and other commitments. The 2024-25 capital plans for the 
board have been summarized in Table 1 below. Proposed 2024-25 Projects are funded by the 
School Renewal Allocation (SRA) and the School Condition Improvement (SCI) allocations. The 
total funding available for 2024-25 includes funding carried forward from the prior year. 
 
Table 1 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 5 of 17



E-1-a Facility Renewal Plan 2024-25  Page 2 

 

Learning Commons Fund 
The board allocates funding from its School Condition Improvement funding to convert 
existing libraries into modernized Learning Commons spaces. The recommendation is to 
allocate $1,000,000 for learning commons projects for 2024-25. 
 
Not all the components required to complete the Learning Commons conversion qualify as 
capital expenditures. Schools will need to augment the project with school budget funds (or 
other funding sources) to purchase durable goods such as furniture and equipment. Currently, 
schools have submitted proposals based on capital requirements, design, and availability of 
supporting funding. The board has allocated $50,000 in its 2024-25 operating budget to 
support schools with non-capital expenditures.  
 
As of August 31, 2024; 49 elementary and 10 secondary libraries have been converted into 
Learning Commons. There are 5 elementary and 1 secondary conversion slated for 
construction for 2024-25. 
 
Capital Projects Identified by Facilities  
Proposed building renewal projects address renewal needs in four major categories: 

• Major building components that are identified for replacement by the facility condition 
database and during annual facility audits. These components ensure that the learning 
environment is warm, dry, has appropriate lighting and comfortable for staff and 
students. Examples are roofing, windows and doors, ventilation, masonry, and electrical 
systems. 

• Life Safety, Intercom and Security Systems are critical to keeping our buildings safe for 
occupants. Because failure of these systems would likely result in the closure of a 
building, they are tested and monitored on a regular basis, and when appropriate, 
identified for upgrade or replacement. 

• Health and Safety upgrades, hazardous material removal, including systematic removal 
of asbestos containing materials and underground storage tanks when appropriate 
and issues identified in monthly inspections. 

• Accessibility upgrades are considered any time a renovation or addition is made to a 
building as well as occupant requirements. An accessibility study has been completed 
and projects are being identified in areas where accessibility investments would result 
in significant benefits to the system. 

 
Projects recommended for approval are set out in Appendix A. 
 
Committed Capital and Other  
These commitments represent repayment of debt incurred in prior years for capital related 
projects.  
 
Grand Erie Multi-Year Plan 
This report is connected to all of our collective priorities: learning, well-being and belonging. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Rafal Wyszynski  
Superintendent of Business & Treasurer 

  

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 6 of 17



E-1-a Facility Renewal Plan 2024-25  Page 3 

 

Appendix A 
 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 7 of 17



E-1-b 
 

Grand Erie District School Board 
 
   

 

 
TO: JoAnna Roberto, Ph. D., Director of Education & Secretary of the Board 

FROM: Rafal Wyszynski, Superintendent of Business & Treasurer 

RE: Rural and Northern Education Fund (RNEF) Spending Report 

DATE: November 11, 2024 
   
 
Background 
The Ministry of Education provides funding through the Grants for Student Needs (GSN) that 
is dedicated for school boards to further improve educational opportunities for students from 
rural communities. Funding is allocated to school boards based on the number of rural 
students and two factors measuring the density of rural student enrolment in the board. 
 

School boards must use the funding for rural education based on local needs and report 
publicly on how the funding is used, such as: 
• Improving programming and support services in rural schools 
• Continuing the operation of rural schools; or 
• Enhancing student transportation options such as late bus runs and mobile e-learning 

through tablets or Wi-Fi. 
 
School boards must utilize the funding allocated using a preliminary school list from the 
Ministry of Education. The list is comprised of schools in which at least half of their students 
are from rural communities. School boards are required to publicly post details of RNEF 
expenditures as well as those schools in which RNEF funding was spent. The report that will 
be posted is attached as Appendix A. 
 

Grand Erie District School Board (Grand Erie) had unspent funds of $1,561,882 from 2022-23 and 
received $705,162 for the 2023-24 school year. Grand Erie utilized $1,901,244 of these funds and 
the unspent funds, totaling $365,800, will be deferred to support eligible expenses for rural 
schools in the 2024-25 school year. The table below summarizes how Grand Erie utilized this 
funding for the 2023-24 school year. 
 

Description Budget Actual Variance 
To support maintenance and operation costs at Grand 
Erie’s rural schools. $2,169,987 $1,814,180 $355,807 

Distribution to all schools on Ministry of Education list 
• Support schools in: 

o Field trips ($6,461) 
o Investment in Technology ($11,818) 
o Programming ($12,079) 
o Improving Support Services ($5,018) 
o Transportation ($51,688) 

$97,057 $87,064 $9,993 

Total Allocated $2,267,044 $1,901,244 $365,800 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Rafal Wyszynski  
Superintendent of Business & Treasurer  

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 8 of 17



E-1-b Rural and Northern Education Fund (RNEF) Spending Report Page 2 

 

Appendix A 
RNEF Report on Grand Erie Website 

 
RURAL AND NORTHERN EDUCATION FUND (RNEF) SPENDING REPORT 

 
In June 2017, the Ministry of Education announced new funding, through the Grants for 
Student Needs (GSN), dedicated for school boards to further improve educational 
opportunities for students from rural communities.  
 
Funding was allocated to school boards based on the number of rural students and two factors 
measuring the density of rural student enrolment in the board. 
 
School boards must use the funding for rural education based on local needs and report 
publicly on how the funding is used, such as: 

• Improving programming and support services in rural schools  
• Continuing the operation of rural schools; or  
• Enhancing student transportation options such as late bus runs and mobile e-learning 

through tablets or Wi-Fi.  
 
School boards must utilize the funding allocated using a preliminary school list from the 
Ministry of Education. The list is comprised of schools in which at least half of their students 
are from rural communities.  
 
School boards are required to publicly post details of RNEF expenditures as well as those 
schools in which RNEF funding was spent.  
 
Grand Erie had unspent funds of $1,561,882 from 2022-23 and received $705,162 for the 2023-24 
school year. Grand Erie utilized $1,901,244 of these funds and the unspent funds, totaling 
$365,800, will be deferred to support eligible expenses for rural schools in the 2024-25 school 
year. 
  

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 9 of 17



E-1-b Rural and Northern Education Fund (RNEF) Spending Report Page 3 

 

RNEF Spending by School 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 10 of 17



E-1-c 
 

Grand Erie District School Board 
 
   

 

TO:  JoAnna Roberto, Ph. D., Director of Education & Secretary of the Board 

FROM:  Rafal Wyszynski, Superintendent of Business & Treasurer 

RE: Year End Report 2023-24 

DATE:  November 11, 2024 
   
 
Background: 
Consistent with Grand Erie District School Board’s (Grand Erie) Budget Development Process 
Policy (BU-02), the Year End Dashboard Report for the twelve months ended August 31, 2024, 
is attached as Appendix A. 
 
Additional Information: 
 
1. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 

For the 2023-24 fiscal year, Senior Administration is proud to report a balanced in-year 
position; indicating revenues are equal to expenditures. This position will maintain Grand 
Erie’s accumulated surplus reserve at $11,111,173. 
 
Grand Erie’s annual operating allocation, for the purposes of assessing its risk for 2023-24, 
was $357,596,313 resulting in an accumulated surplus percentage of 3.11%. Grand Erie 
continues to remain in the low-risk category with respect to its available surplus as a 
percentage of revenues. The table below illustrates the level of the Ministry of Education’s 
(Ministry) interaction based on the risk level associated with a board’s accumulated surplus. 
 

Available Surplus Risk Level Ministry Assessment 
Less than 1.0% High Ministry Quarterly Review 

Between 1.0% and 2.0% Moderate Ministry Monitoring 
Greater than 2.0% Low Ministry Annual Review 

 
School boards report a list of accumulated surpluses annually to the Ministry when 
completing their financial statement submission through the Education Financial 
Information System (EFIS). The submitted report, known as Schedule 5 - Detail of 
Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) is attached as Appendix B. The breakdown of these 
reserves are as follows: 

 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 11 of 17

https://granderie.ca/docs/default-source/by-law--policies--procedures-and-protocols/policies/budget_development_process_bu-02.pdf?sfvrsn=d01b1cdc_1
https://granderie.ca/docs/default-source/by-law--policies--procedures-and-protocols/policies/budget_development_process_bu-02.pdf?sfvrsn=d01b1cdc_1


E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 2 

 

 
2. UNSUPPORTED CAPITAL 

Unsupported capital summarizes the board’s historical unfunded capital projects. Funding 
is typically Ministry-funded (supported) or board-funded (unsupported). Unsupported 
capital creates in-year pressures to a board’s operating budget as it will need to support 
the annual amortization. This gap is referred to as the Deferred Capital Contributions – 
Amortization Gap (or DCC Gap).  
 
There are necessary uses of board-funded capital such as repairs and upgrades to 
administrative buildings and the purchase of portables in excess of the funding provided. 
Grand Erie was required to incur some unsupported capital in 2023-24 due to a 
combination of aging administrative buildings as well as portable requirements. 
 
School boards have access to certain strategies to draw down this balance, such as 
redirecting existing portions of the School Renewal Allocation, or by utilizing proceeds from 
the sale of land or buildings. The following table illustrates the Unsupported Capital 
balance history for Grand Erie.  
 

 
 

The DCC Gap for 2023-24 was $646,695, a slight increase from the 2022-23 DCC Gap of 
$565,755.  
 

 
  

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 12 of 17



E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 3 

 

The following table shows the changes to the unsupported balance during the last fiscal 
year. Based on this progress, and anticipated future reductions, it is expected that the 
unsupported balance will be eliminated by August 31, 2034. 

 

 
 
3. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Many of the current accountability and compliance mechanisms of the Ministry’s grant 
regulations and other regulations require boards to set aside unspent grant allocations 
until they are spent on their intended purpose. Additionally, there are instances where third 
parties impose restrictions on expenditures within certain allocations. Under the Public 
Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) guidelines, these externally restricted amounts are 
reported as deferred revenue (a liability) until the restriction is fulfilled. 
 
The table below illustrates the beginning balance, the ending balance, and the change 
year-over-year in each of the Grand Erie’s notable deferred revenue accounts. 
 

 
 

4. CAPITAL SPENDING 
As per Grand Erie’s Major Construction Policy (FA-01), the Board of Trustees shall be 
provided a report in November of each year summarizing the scope, cost and status all 
other capital projects for the prior fiscal year which were not subject to the policy. The 
summary of this work will be provided as part of the Major Construction Report. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Rafal Wyszynski  
Superintendent of Business & Treasurer 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 13 of 17



E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 4 

 

Appendix A 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 14 of 17



E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 5 

 
 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 15 of 17



E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 6 

 
  

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 16 of 17



E-1-c Year End Report 2023-24  Page 7 

 

Appendix B 

 

Finance Committee Meeting November 11, 2024 Page 17 of 17


	Finance Committee Agenda 2024 November 11
	Finance Committee Agenda 2024 November 11
	C-1 September 9, 2024  Finance Committee Minutes
	E-1- a Facilities Renewal Plan 2024-25
	E-1-b RNEF Spending Report
	E-1-c  Year End Report 2023-24



